
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 6, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE FY 2020-2021 CAPITAL AND 
OPERATING BUDGET  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2020-2021 
Capital and Operating Budget and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Budget process was introduced at the January meeting.  Sukey Robb 
Wilder and Gaylord Schaap were appointed to the Budget Committee.  Our 
first Committee meeting is scheduled in February.   
 
Staff is a little slower in getting the draft budget together this year; we will 
have a rough draft available for the Budget Committee meeting and present 
it to the Board at the March meeting.  Table 1 below identifies the calendar 
for the budget approval process.   
 
Budget issues for this year include: 
 
Funding a full time General Manager and a full time Accounts Clerk.  These 
positions had been part-time. 
 
Unfunded Pension Liability.  We have been attempting to stay ahead of the 
unfunded pension liability curve - CalPERS charges over 7% interest.  In 
2019, the Board approved an accelerated payment schedule of $500,000 
annual payments for two years taken from reserves.  The initial payment of 
$500,000 was made in 2019.  Another $500,000 payment is schedule for FY 
2021.  These two payments should get the District caught up on UL.  The 
payback schedule to reserves is budgeted at $135,000 annually for seven 
years.   
 
Capital Project funding.  FY 2021 has Capital budgeted at $1.326 million 
dollars.  This project includes ~3,200’ of 6” HDPE main serving 31 services 
on Old River Rd (GV) and ~1,900’ of 6” HDPE main serving 27 services.  
Sixteen lead goosenecks replacement is also included in the project.  
 
Water Rate Increase.  Nine years ago, based on a rate study, we embarked 
on a nine-year program of moderate water rate increases to develop a capital 







FY 2020-2021 BUDGET  2 
February 6, 2020 
 


 


project funding base which we were targeting $500,000 per year.  In those 9 
years we increased water rates 3% per year.  We did not meet the $500,000 
target.   A new Cost of Service Rate Study will present recommendations to 
the Board at the March Board meeting for rates over the next 5-10 years. 
 
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2019-2020 Budget Preparation  
Reviewed/Approved Capital Improvement 
Program 


 January 2020, 
February 2020 


Introduce Budget Process January 3, 2020 


Budget Committee meetings February - March 
2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Recommendations on Water Rates 


March 5, 2020 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 18, 2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 2, 2020 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rate 


Increase and Rate Study 
recommendations


May 7, 2020 


 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 6, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Water Services Rate Study Discussion and Approval   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  
Discussion and Approval of a Water Services Rate Study Contract. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $40,000 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has budgeted $40,000 for a Water Services Rate Study to help 
shape water rates for the next five to ten years.  The Board approved RFP 
was mailed out to ten prospective vendors on January 6, 2020, with a due 
date of February 3, 2020.  We received XX responses and recommend the 
proposal from XXXXX submitted at a not to exceed amount of $XX,XXX.  The 
firm has a strong reputation and is well recommended.  The timeline for the 
work completion is early March 2020.  The report and recommendations will 
be presented to the Board at the March 5, 2020 meeting for discussion.  
Once the Board approves of the work product, a Public Hearing will be held at 
the May 7, 2020 Board meeting that will be attended by the Rate specialist.  
A contract for the Rate Study project will be developed and signed by the 
GM.  A draft resolution is included for the review and approval of the selected 
Rate specialist and contract at the February Board meeting.   
 
 
 







RESOLUTION 20-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 


A WATER SERVICES RATE STUDY WITH XXXX AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL 


MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District has contracted with XXXX for a Water 


Services Rate Study for Sweetwater Springs Water District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District wishes to support and review the existing rate structure and 
potential rate increases to meet operating and capital costs, maintain adequate debt coverage, 
depreciation, and maintain reserve funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, XXXX is the best placed professional services company to provide 
the services for this project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, XXXX has submitted a proposal for these services attached as 
Exhibit A; and 
 


WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it fair and complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Council will review and approve the agreement 
 


 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Agreement for Professional Services for a Water Services Rate Study with 
XXXX, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved in the sum of 
$20,000; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
February 6, 2020, by the following vote: 
 







Resolution 20-06. Agreement for Professional Services with XXXX for a Water Services 
Rate Study   
February 6, 2020          2 
 


 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
         


 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer     
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 


 





		Item V-G- Water Services Rate Study Discussion and Approval

		Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 



		Item V-G.1 - Draft Resolution 20-06,  Approval of Contract for a Water Services Rate Study






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-H 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: February 7, 2020 
  
SUBJECT: Discuss/Action Resolution 20-07, Amending the Following Sections of the 
Sweetwater Springs Policies and Procedures: 
 Section 3020.160 - Credit and Security Deposit Requirements 
 Section 3070.10 - Due Date on Bills 
 Section 3080.30 - Notice Procedures for Termination 
 Section 3080.40 - Termination Procedures 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 20-07. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Unknown, but minor.  
 
DISCUSSION: 


At the last meeting we discussed new requirements under SB 998, the Water Shutoff 
Protection Act.  Effective in February 2020, the Water Shutoff Protection Act is 
intended to minimize the number of Californians who have their water service turned 
off for inability to pay.  The District is already in compliance with much of the new 
Act's requirements, but there are two areas of our delinquency process that require 
modification:  (1) The Act mandates that a customer's water cannot be turned off for 
non-payment until a bill is at least 60 days delinquent, which is a little longer than we 
currently allow; and (2) Customers who demonstrate a serious health issue requiring 
water and an inability to pay must now have the option to pay via an alternative 
payment schedule of up to 12 months. 
 
Staff has reviewed the District's water shutoff policies with an eye toward any non-
compliance with the new laws and found the following policies required amendments: 
 
Policy 3020.160 - Credit and Security Deposit Requirements 
Policy 3070.10 - Payment of Bills 
Policy 3080.30 - Notice Procedures for Termination 
Policy 3080.40 - Termination Procedures 
 
Resolution 20-07 amends those policy sections.  If approved, the revised policies 
would be effective with the February 15, 2020 billing. 
 







Beyond the changes to our policies, it should be noted that the District's compliance 
with the Water Shutoff Protection Act will also require some changes to our forms 
and notices, and to our website.  







Resolution 20-07 
 


A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Amending the 


following Sections of the Sweetwater Springs Policies 
& Procedures: 


Section 3020.160 - Credit and Security Deposit Requirements 
Section 3070.10 - Due Date on Bills 
Section 3080.30 - Notice Procedures for Termination 
Section 3080-40 - Termination Procedures 


 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3000 et al. describes the District’s Water Code of 
Operations; and  
 


WHEREAS, in 2019 the Legislature enacted SB998, Water Shutoff 
Protection Act; and  
 


WHEREAS, certain portions of Section 3000 require amendment for good 
faith compliance with the Act. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 
Section 1. Section 3000 et al. of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District Policies & Procedures, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 


Policy Number: 3020.160 
Policy Title:  Credit and Security Deposit Requirements 
 
2080. . . . In addition, a customer shall be required to pay a security deposit in 
order to continue to receive water service in the event the customer incurs two 
consecutive Turn-Off Notices.  Such security deposit shall be in he amount of 
one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00). 
 
In addition, any customer who participates in the Alternative Payment Plan shall 
be required to pay a security deposit as part of the Plan if they do not already 
have one. 
 
 
Policy Number: 3070.10 
Policy Title:  Due Date on Bills 
 







All bills for water service shall be deemed due when rendered and shall become 
be eligible for delinquency fees delinquent twenty-five (25) days after the date 
shown on the bill, except that governmental agencies shall become delinquent 
forty days after the date shown on the bill. Bills will be due and become 
delinquent delinquency fees added as stated in this section without regard to 
actual delivery. Consumers are required to ascertain their own indebtedness and 
billing status if bills are not received on schedule. 
 
 
Policy Number: 3080.30 
Policy Title:  Notice Procedures for Termination 
 
. . . e. A statement, in case of termination for nonpayment of a residential 
water bill, that the customer may initiate a written protest or request an 
investigation concerning services or charges, or may request amortization or 
payment arrangements of any unpaid charges if a written request for such action 
is delivered to the district within fifteen (15 ) days of receiving the disputed bill 
or within ten 91) days of the mailing of the notice described herein.  However, 
such request must be made prior to the date a Turn Off Notice is posted 
pursuant to Section 3080.40(b). 
 
 
Policy Number: 3080.40 
Policy Title:  Termination Procedures 
 
. . .  b. If the district does not receive a timely written protest or request 
for investigation or amortization, or request for payment arrangements, and the 
reason for termination remains, the district shall place at each location scheduled 
for termination of services a forty-eight(48) hour Turn-Off Notice notice prior to 
termination of service.  The forty-eight (48) hour notice of termination of service 
The Turn-Off Notice shall include the information set forth in Sections 3080.30 
(a)-(d). More than one Turn-Off Notice may be posted at a location if that 
location has more than one living unit. 
 
 c. The district may terminate service for non-payment any time 
after 60 days after the date the bill was rendered.  The district may terminate 
service at any time at or after the date forth in the last notice of termination.  
However, the district may only terminate service for delinquency of payment in 
accordance with Section 3080.70. 
 
 d. A Turn Off Notice service charge shall be assessed by the 
District when an employee is dispatched to place a notice at a customer's service 
address for shut-off for non-payment.  A Turn Off Notice service charge of 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) shall be charged against the account.  Waiver of 
Turn Off Notice service charges for good cause shall be at the discretion of the 
General Manager.  In the event more than one Turn Off Notice is placed at a 
customer's service an additional charge of ($15.00) for each additional Turn Off 
Notice shall be charged against the account. 
 


 
Section 2. Severance Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase or word of this resolution is for any reason held to be 







unconstitutional, unlawful or otherwise invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this resolution.  The Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed and 
adopted this resolution and each and all provisions thereof irrespective 
of the fact that any one or more of said provisions be declared 
unconstitutional, unlawful or otherwise invalid. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective on 
February 15, 2020.  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of 
Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma 
County, California, at a meeting held on February 6, 2020, by the 
following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       


 
 


           
      Rich Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 





		Item V-H -  Changes to policies under SB 998

		Unknown, but minor. 



		Item V-H.1 - Resolution 20-07, Amending certain policies relating to District shut-offsOrdinance 27 -- Amending Termination, discipline, and rules of conduct policy






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VII   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 6, 2020   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in December were 12,925 units (29.7 AF 


Monte Rio cycle), and production (calculated as running twelve-month average) was 46.5 
AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher, and production was lower (35.2 AF and 
44.6 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference for the 
combined systems; the water loss trend was up this month (20.7%).  Looking at the data 
over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 29%, and sales have 
dropped 18%.  The water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in the 15-20% range.  
Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the capital projects funded 
by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to the drought public education; it's 
unlikely historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In January, we had four total leak repairs with 26 hours on it.  Two leaks were in 


Guerneville, and two leaks were in Monte Rio.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is more 
leaks and fewer person-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks and fewer 
person-hours compared to January one year ago (11 and 82).  Figure 2 shows service and 
main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  For Calendar Year 2019, total leaks 
were 78, down from 105 from 2018.  Looking at the leaks chart over the last ten years, 
we've come down from around 300 leaks per year to under 80 - quite a difference and very 
noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - address ongoing issues with in-house 
projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 6 
February 6, 2020 
 


4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  November rainfall was 2.12”, which is lower than the long-term 
average month and keeps the yearly total below the long-term annual average.        


  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were three in-house construction projects in 


January: 
 A new meter, a 16” poly riser, and customer gate valve were installed at 16500 


Glenda Drive (GV).   Seven- and one-half person-hours were spent on the project.  
 Staff assisted Vonn Renner with the installation of 140’ of 6” PVC, replacing steel 


main at 14375 Camino Del Arroyo (GV).  Thirty hours were spent on the project. 
 Staff relocated two meters outside of the customer gate at 8420 Bohemian Hwy 


(MR).  One meter was changed out.  Seventy-eight hours were spent on this project. 
 The three projects totaled 115.5 hours. 


 
There were no toilet rebates.   


 
6.   Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law:  Continue to work on 


implementation by the 02/2020 deadline. On February agenda.   
 


7.   SSWD Website Update: Continue to investigate. 
 


8.   Labor Negotiations:  Glenn Berkheimer with IEDA announced his retirement due to 
health issues.  IEDA has assigned Gregory Ramirez to head the labor negotiation.  Laura 
Strand with Stationary Engineers, Local 39, Mr. Ramirez, and I are scheduled to meet on 
February 10, 2020.   


 
9.   Lower Harrison Road Drive Retaining Wall:  Coastland submitted 70% plans.  After a 


final site visit, three trees were identified for removal.  The final design was completed the 
first week of February.  Quotes should be received by mid-February.  A special meeting 
may need to occur to get Board approval of the project contract so we can get started on the 
emergency level need. 


 
10.   Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for February, FY 2020.   


 
          


 
 


 
 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 6 
February 6, 2020 
 


General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 6 
February 6, 2020 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 6 
February 6, 2020 
 







 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
February 6, 2020 
 


Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 FY21+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2021 CIP Planning


        2021 CIP Design


        2019 CIP Construction Ends


   Labor Negotiations


    Strategic Planning Nov-19


    Cost of Service Study Mar-20


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-20


Water Rights SCWA 
PEmergency Response Plan Review


Building Lease
        Lease Renewal Aug-20


Policies and Procedures
        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt 


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: February 6, 2020  






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


 
February 6, 2020 Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 5, 2019 and the January 2, 2020 Board 


Meeting 







 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Interviews and Appointment for a replacement for resigned 


Board member Pip Marquez de la Plata (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-04, Community Development Block Grant 


(CDBG) Application for CIP 2021 Environmental and Design costs  (Est. time 10 
min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Grant and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) 


funding (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Res. 20-05 Approval of the FY 2020-2025 Capital 


Improvement Program (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re FY 2019-20 2nd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operating 


and Capital Expenses and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Capital and Operating Budget (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-06, Approve Water Services Rate Study 


Contract (after reviewing RFP Responses) (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
H. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-07, Amending the Following Sections of hte 


Sweetwater Springs Policies and Procedures: 
  Section 3020.160 - Credit and Security Deposit Requirements 
  Section 3070.10 - Due Date on Bills 
  Section 3080.30 - Notice Procedures for Termination 
  Section 3080.40 - Termination Procedures 
 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
  


VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 2







 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Glenn Berkheimer 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 


ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: January 2, 2020 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
January 2, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
The GM noted he had passed out the Request for Proposals (RFP) for Water Services Rate Study 
(Item E.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
President Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap abstained from 
voting on the Minutes as he was absent at the December Board meeting.  Discussion ensued.  
Director Lipinski moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion 
carried 3-0, with Item III-A (Minutes) continued for approval at the February meeting.  The following 
items were approved: 
 


A. (The December Minutes were continued for approval at the February Board 
Meeting.) 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-01, Accepting the Final Audit for 


FY 2018-19.  The GM provided a brief overview of this item.  Auditor Michael Celentano 
appeared by telephone and presented the Audit.  Board questions and discussion 
ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to approve Resolution 20-01, Accepting the Final Audit 
for FY 2018-19.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 
V-B. (6:58 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-02, Approval of contract for Audit 


Services with Michael Celentano, CPA for the FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Audit.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved 
to approve Resolution 20-02, Approval of Contract for Audit Services with Michael 
Celentano, CPA for the FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Audit.  Director Schaap seconded.  
Brief discussion ensued.  Motion carried 3-0.   


 
V-C. (7:03 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2020-25 Capital Improvement Program.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was 
taken.  


 
V-D. (7:48 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Budget Process.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Directors Schaap and Robb-Wilder 
were appointed to sit on an ad hoc Budget Committee, with Director Holmer as a backup.   


 
V-E. (7:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Cost of Service Study RFP.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
 
** At 8:04 p.m. the Board took a short break.  The meeting reconvened at 8:08 p.m. 
 
 
V-F. (8:08 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan Update.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken. 
 
V-G. (8:18 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-03, Revising Policy and Procedures 


Section 2120, Employment of Relatives.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Schaap moved to approve Resolution 20-03, Revising the 
Employment of Relatives Policy and Procedures Section 2120.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 
VI-H. (8:24 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Water Shutoff Protection Act.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:28 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. Old Monte Rio Road Project 


 2







 3


6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Personnel 
8. Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law 
9. SSWD Website Update 
10. Flushing 
11. Kincade Fire Meeting 
12. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:35 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:36 p.m.) 
 
1. Budget 
2. Labor negotiations 
3. Water Shutoff Protection Act policy revisions 
4. Cost of Service Study 
 


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 8;37 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Pip Marquez de la Plata       


Rich Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:28 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:35 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: December 5, 2019 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
December 5, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Gaylord Schaap 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Glenn Berkheimer 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:35 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 
p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder noted for the record that she had requested Item VI-F (Real property 
negotiation at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville) be moved from Closed Session onto the 
Administrative items.  Brief discussion ensued.   
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:37 p.m.) 
 
President Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as amended.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 5, 2019 Board Meeting and the 
November 21, 2019 Special Board Meeting, with Item III-A of the Special Meeting 
Minutes amended to read: 
  . . . contingent on positive Union feedback relative to security, safety, or 


morale.  (additions underlined) 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 


 1







 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:39 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


IX. CLOSED SESSION (6:39 p.m.) 
 
At 6;39 p.m. President Lipinski announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 6:40 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 7 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54957.6): 


 District negotiator: Glenn Berkheimer (IEDA) 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 No action was taken. 


 
 


VI. ADMINISTRATIVE (7 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
VI-A. (6:54 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan Update.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken. 
 
VI-B. (7:29 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Wildfire and water contamination.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Director Holmer made a PowerPoint presentation.  
Discussion ensued. 


 
VI-C. (7:57 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2020-24 Capital Improvement Program.  The 


Gm provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  This item was calendared for 
discussion at the January meeting.   


 
VI-D. (8:28 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Auditor for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb- 
Wilder moved to direct staff to prepare a contract extension and Letter of Engagement for 
two more years.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 
VI-E. (8:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Potential Changes to District Nepotism policy.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved 
to add a Section 2120.30 to our current policy to define "direct supervisory relationship".  
Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  Comments were made by Legal 
Counsel Rachel Hundley. 


 
VI-F. (8:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Real property negotiation at 17448 River lane, 


Guerneville.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No formal 
action was taken. 


 
VI-G. (8:49 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Board member training.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Comments were made by Rachel Hundley.  Discussion ensued.  
No formal action was taken. 


 
 


** At 9:10 p.m. the Board took a short break.  At 9:15 p.m. the meeting reconvened. 
 


 2







VI-H. (9:15 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Election of Board Officers.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to name Director 
Holmer as President, Director Robb-Wilder as Vice President, and Director Schaap as 
Financial Coordinator.  Seconded by both Director Holmer and Director Robb-Wilder.  
Motion carried 3-0.  Brief discussion ensued. 


 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:18 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. 2019 CIP 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Personnel 
8. Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law 
9. SSWD Website Update 
10. Flushing 
11. Kincade Fire Meeting 
12. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:28 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Lipinski announced plans to replace MD Gas and Fife Antiques on the Rio Nido 


strip with a 2-story apartment complex.  Discussion ensued. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:33 p.m.) 
 
1. Budget 
2. CIP 
3. Emergency Response Plan update 
4. Cost of Service Study RFP 
5. Lower Harrison parking upgrades update 
 


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


 3







 4


Pip Marquez de la Plata       


Rich Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:35 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:37 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:39 p.m.)

		VI. ADMINISTRATIVE (7 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:18 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:28 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 (50%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 2nd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This is the 
mid-year report on our fiscal year.  It comprises 50% of the year by time and so 
we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
In the 2Q the District approved a $500,000 extra payment on the PERS 
Unfunded Liability (UL) financed with a loan from District Policy 
Reserves in that same amount.  This decision was not part of the FY 
2019-20 budget.  It impacted both Operations revenue in the form of 
loan proceeds in the sum of $500,000 and Operations expense in the 
form of the extra UL payment of $500,000 instead of the $64,549 that 
was budgeted.  The net effect of this transaction is $64,549.   
 
Not including the District Policy Reserves loan proceeds transaction, 2Q 
Revenue is greater than 50% of budgeted amount 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at 3.0% ($77,338) ahead of 
the 50% schedule which is typical for the mid year.  At the end of the 2Q we 
have sold 3.5% less water than last year during the same period.   
 
Overall revenues are 3.9% more than budgeted, with higher than budgeted 
revenues in all non-operating revenue categories. 
 
 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru December 31, 2019 2 
February 6, 2020 


Not including the District Policy Reserves loan proceeds transaction, 2Q 
Expenditures are higher than 50% of budgeted amount.  
 
As of the 2Q expenditures are 1.0% ($22,143) more than budgeted.  It 
should be noted that many of our annual expenses have been paid for the 
year.  Of note in the 2Q was the $43,304 price tag for a well rehab of El 
Bonita Well 6.  Budgeted at $18,000, the rehab revealed the need for a 
new pump and motor which drove costs up.   
 
The District is still awaiting the price tag for the Lower Harrison Tank 
emergency parking area rehabilitation.  $12,000 was budgeted for this 
project, but the actual cost will likely be significantly more.  As of the 2Q, 
the District has spent $6,039 on this project. 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 2Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical for mid-year - we have received the 
first installment of the annual assessment from the county and made the first 
payments on our debt.  The expenses of the 2019 CIP (carryover from the 2019 
Budget) have all been paid.   Transfers to CIRF and in-house construction have 
been made as well.  We see no major differences from the approved budget.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 2nd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 2nd 
Quarter.  Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances and 
also the funds at PARS and the USDA Bond Debt at WestAmerica. Table 3 is 
typical for the mid year of the fiscal year - funds will need to be moved around to 
balance out reserve targets.   
 
 







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 823,033 1,644,824 -821,791 50.04%
4031.11· Current Charges 391,083 633,846 -242,763 61.7%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 150,749 296,383 -145,634 50.86%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,364,865 2,575,053 -1,210,188 53.0% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,364,865 2,575,053 -1,210,188 53.0%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 10,216 8,000 2,216 127.7%  


4448 · Policy Reserve Loan Proceeds 500,000 0 500,000 100.0%
In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves *


3600 · Construction New Services 12,282 7,000 5,282 175.45%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 4,406 3,000 1,406 146.88%


4032 · Rent 56,758 105,000 -48,242 54.06%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,995 0 2,995 100.0%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 5,646 1,500 4,146 376.42%
In the 1Q, the District received $4,202 for a meter 
relocation at a customer's request.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 592,303 124,500 467,803 475.75% Percentage without UL 74.14%


Total Income 1,957,168 2,699,553 -742,385 72.5%  Percentage without UL 54%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 436,179 903,046 -466,867 48.3%  


5912 · Overtime 18,462 34,307 -15,845 53.82%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 19,235 34,950 -15,715 55.04%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 18,672 34,100 -15,428 54.76%  


Total Salary 492,548 1,006,403 -513,855 48.94%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -510 0 -510 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 36,707 95,927 -59,220 38.27% This item was likely overbudgeted this year.


5920.4 · Retirement - UL Mandatory 55,451 55,451 0 100.0%
In the 1Q, the mandatory UL payment was paid for 
the year.


5920.5 · Retirement - UL Extra payment 500,000 64,549 435,451 774.61%
In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves *


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 6,745 16,761 -10,016 40.24%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 103,947 237,000 -133,053 43.86%  


5931 · Retiree Health 5,448 7,680 -2,232 70.94%
In the 1Q, annual contribution to CERBT ($3,000) 
made.


5941 · Life insurance - GM 1,000 0 1,000 100.0%  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 33,377 37,000 -3,623 90.21%
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 742,166 514,368 227,798 144.29% Percentage without UL 47.08%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,234,714 1,520,771 -286,057 81.19%
Percentage without UL 48.31%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,363 2,350 -987 58.0%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,017 4,900 -2,883 41.17%


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 1,835 680 1,155 269.92%
In the 1Q, the District had unbudgeted maintenance 
work done on the radios ($1,588)


6040-T · Telephones 12,062 22,900 -10,838 52.67%  


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Communications 17,278 30,830 -13,552 56.04%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76%
(In the 1Q, paid for the year. Underbudgeted this 
year.)


Total Insurances 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 2,642 21,000 -18,358 12.58%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 2,832 6,000 -3,168 47.19%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 5,474 27,000 -21,526 20.27%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 4,255 8,800 -4,545 48.35%
6100 · SCADA system 1,507 5,000 -3,493 30.13%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 22,663 50,000 -27,337 45.33%   
6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 53,621 50,000 3,621 107.24%


In the 2Q the District rehabbed El Bonita Well 6 that 
required replacing the pump and motor ($43,304).  
One well rehab was budgeted for this fiscal year at 
$18,000.


*
6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,145 1,000 1,145 214.53%


The fire emergency resulted in much higher 
generator fuel amounts being used. *


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 84,191 114,800 -30,609 73.34%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 8,372 12,020 -3,648 69.65%  


6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,965 15,000 965 106.43%
In the 2Q the District paid system fees for the year 
($8,122) *


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 24,337 28,520 -4,183 85.33%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 9,311 17,000 -7,689 54.77%  


6430 · Printing Expense 3,680 7,500 -3,820 49.07%  


6461 · Office Supplies 2,213 6,000 -3,787 36.88%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 1,623 1,100 523 147.56%
In the 2Q unbudgeted ads for the Maintenance 
Worker position left this line item underbudgeted. *


6890 · Computers/Software 405 2,500 -2,095 16.2%
Total Office Expense 17,231 34,100 -16,869 50.53%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 10,193 20,000 -9,807 50.97%  


6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,965 7,000 -4,035 42.36%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 794 1,200 -406 66.21%
Total Operating Supplies 13,953 28,200 -14,247 49.48%


Professional Services
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 6,654 12,500 -5,846 53.23%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 12,973 58,000 -45,027 22.37%  


6590 · Engineering 435 0 435 100.0%  


6610 · Legal 16,771 20,000 -3,229 83.86%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 18,598 42,000 -23,402 44.28%
In the 1Q, the District changed credit card 
processing banks at a considerable cost savings., 
which will leave this line item overbudgeted this year.  


Total Professional Services 55,432 132,500 -77,068 41.84%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 606 3,300 -2,694 18.36%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 17,378 29,790 -12,413 58.33% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 17,983 33,090 -15,107 54.35%


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 608 3,650 -3,042 16.65%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 12,263 20,000 -7,737 61.32%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,732 7,400 -2,668 63.95%


Total Transportation & Travel 17,603 31,050 -13,447 56.69%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 685 1,500 -815 45.67%
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,432 1,800 -368 79.58% In the 1Q, t-shirts were purchased for the year.


6021.4 · Jackets 93 240 -147 38.6%  


Total Uniforms 2,210 3,540 -1,330 62.43%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 60,723 110,000 -49,277 55.2%  


7321 · Propane 1,072 3,000 -1,928 35.73%  


Total Utilities 61,795 113,000 -51,205 54.69%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 362,701 620,630 -257,929 58.44%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,597,415 2,141,401 -543,986 74.6%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 7,429 24,000 -16,571 30.95%
In the 2Q, the District spent $6,039 on the Lower 
Harrison parking area project, budgeted at $12,000. *


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%
  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 7,429 24,000 -16,571 30.95%


Total Expense 1,604,843 2,165,401 -560,558 74.11%


Net Ordinary Income 352,324 534,152 -181,828 65.96%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 296,383 296,383 0 100.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 190,000 -190,000 0.0%  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
321,383 526,383 -205,000 61.06%


  


 Page 3 of 3







Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Notes


Income


 


New Construction flat charges revenue 20,544.80 27,000.00 -6,455.20 76.09%


CY Direct Charges 403,541.74 710,000.00 -306,458.26 56.84%


PY Direct Charges 8,436.98 40,000.00 -31,563.02 21.09%


Interest Revenue 14,253.05 25,000.00 -10,746.95 57.01%


Tfer from Operations - CDR 296,383.00 296,383.00 0.00 100.0%


Tfer from Operations - In House Constr. 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.0%


Tfer from Operations - Surplus Income 0.00 190,000.00 -190,000.00 0.0%


Total Income 768,159.57 1,313,383.00 -545,223.43 58.49%


Expense


 


 


In-House Construction 296.38


CIP 2019 (MRTP Filter replacement) 62,471.67 0.00 62,471.67 100.0%


Principal - State Loans 67,116.71 146,619.00 -79,502.29 45.78%


Principal Pymt -USDA  Bonds 27,622.00 98,821.00 -71,199.00 27.95%


Principal - Priv. Placemnt Loan 80,660.10 216,062.00 -135,401.90 37.33%


Principal-2013 Cap One Rev Bond 359,000.00 566,558.00 -207,558.00 63.37%


Capital Interest 194,510.79


Total Expense 791,677.65 1,028,060.00 -236,382.35 77.01%


Net Capital Income -23,518.08 285,323.00 -308,841.08 -8.24%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Capital Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)







 


Non-Operating Balances FY 2019-20 and Reserves Above Policy
 


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


GRAND TOTAL: 
COUNTY + USDA 
+ PARS/CERBT


FY 2019-20 Policy Reserves: 


$1,379,359


Reserves Above 
Policy Net Loans from 


Reserves


$42,621.30 $214,170.83 $245,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,235.71 $789,646.59 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $105,662.08 $2,776,702.09 $3,139,156.30 1,759,797.30


NAME


CERBT 
(Contributions are 
part of Reserves)


PARS
(Contributions are part 


of Reserves)


Operations
Bldg Fund
(part of Policy 


Reserves)


FY 2019-20 
POLICY 


RESERVES: 
$1,379,359


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
58340


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


USDA Bond Debt
(at WestAmerica)


Policy Reserve Loans 
Outstanding:


$500,000 (Oct 2019)


CONTRIBUTIONS: CONTRIBUTIONS: ($1,116,991)


Fund
$36,518 $200,000 76751 76752 76753 76755 76756 76759 76762  


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0900
7106


1200  


FP1-Jul $42,621.30 $215,332.01 $295,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,000.81 $724,549.83 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $124,164.15 $2,761,370.43 $3,143,487.89 1,764,128.89


FP2-Aug $42,621.30 $214,435.22 $10,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $629,178.16 $146,945.40 $211,963.07 $124,166.19 $2,176,447.55 $2,557,670.26 1,178,311.26


FP3-Sept $43,151.66 $216,665.90 $70,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $628,600.66 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,883.68 $2,162,561.04 $2,482,262.28 1,102,903.28


FP4-Oct $43,151.66 $219,824.38 $645,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $29,000.81 $651,153.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,884.70 $2,259,662.03 $2,582,522.77 1,203,163.77


FP5-Nov $43,151.66 $223,512.49 $245,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $28,704.43 $653,529.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,885.65 $1,861,741.65 $2,188,291.45 1,308,932.45


FP6-Dec $48,773.00 $227,382.62 $63,684.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $53,704.43 $1,191,572.46 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $166,584.67 $2,243,401.47 $2,686,141.76 1,806,782.76


FP7-Jan


FP8-Feb


FP9-Mar


FP10-Apr


FP11-May


FP12-Jun


FP 13 
(FINAL)


          


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as 


"Vendors Payable")


 


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds); 76754 (Fed Loan); 76757 (Guernewood Park); 76761 (Cap and Debt policy reserve)   (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves; Starting FY 2019-20, CERBT is also part of reserves, but only the contributions (not earnings) to PARS and CERBT are included


 





		Item V-E - Actual v Budgeted - 2Q 2019-20

		Item V-E.1 - Budget variances as of 12-31-2019 (50%)

		Sheet1



		Item V-E.2 - Capital variances as of 12-31-2019

		Sheet1



		Item V-E.3 - County Acctg Funds FY 19-20

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 6, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE INTERVIEWS AND APPOINTMENT 
FOR A REPLACEMENT FOR RESIGNED BOARD MEMBER PIP MARQUEZ DE 
LA PLATA  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider two applicants for appointment to the 
vacant District Board Director position.  Appoint one of the candidates and seat 
that person for the remainder of the February Board meeting to serve until the 
seat expires in November of 2020. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
The District received two application letters from Brenda Adelman and Larry Spilane for the 
open Sweetwater Springs Board Director position.  Below are the letters of interest and 
background for each of the two candidates for the Board’s consideration.  We recommend the 
Board appoint one of the candidates and seat them for the regular February Board meeting.  
 
 
 
Ed Fortner, General Manager 
Hello, Mr. Fortner, 
 
I'm writing this letter to introduce myself as a potential temporary Board replacement for Pip 
Marquez de la Plata. I know Pip well from our Friends of Rio Nido association and I am looking 
to help him lessen the load he has taken on volunteering in the community. 
 
I was also contacted by Rich Holmer who was kind enough to give me an overview of the content 
and responsibilities of participating on the Board. 
 
I was formerly the Superintendent of Maintenance at Wastewater Division of San Francisco's 
Public Utility Commission. I retired in 2013, but I still remain interested in the environment and 
world of water delivery and treatment. Although I spent 20 years in Wastewater, I also served as a 
Maintenance Planner at our Water Division for 4 years. I was deeply involved in the budgeting, 
accounting and capital improvement projects at the Water Division from Hetch Hetchy to City 
Distribution and our suburban distribution in the Central Valley, East Bay and Peninsula 
locations. We were also in the process of installing a number of high tech monitoring and control 
devices as watershed, pump station and pipeline security became a heightened issue in the early 
2000's. 







FY 2020-2021 BUDGET  2 
February 6, 2020 
 


 


 
In the Wastewater Division as Superintendent I also participated in monthly meetings with our 
neighbors and constituents to keep the public informed of our projects and operations. I 
participated as well in many other meetings with our managers and PUC members so they would 
be equally aware of how our Division was performing. 
 
I'm also a customer in Rio Nido and I enjoy reading all your communications including the test 
results for water and your capital projects. I've also gotten a good idea of your well systems from 
your website in Guerneville and Monte Rio. I've been very pleased with your contact with the 
community. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you so I can assist Pip in his transition to a number of other 
responsibilities he is involved in at this time. 
 
Thank you. 
Larry Spillane 
14864 Rio Nido Road 
Guerneville, CA 95446 
415-728-1611 
speelane@gmail.com 
 
 
 
Ed:  
  
I was recently communicating with Sukey about another matter and she wondered if I knew 
anyone who is in Sweetwater’s District and might be interested in being on your Board.  She 
asked me to spread the word.  I thought it over, and before putting the word out, I responded to 
Sukey that I may be interested.  We later had a long discussion about what the position involved 
and I told her that I would be interested in trying it out for the year to see whether it is a good fit 
for me and other Sweetwater Board members. (If so, I would then apply for a full term 
appointment.) Sukey was very supportive of my being on the Board and I agreed to write you a 
brief letter of interest. 
  
I met you briefly at the last Citizens Advisory Group (CAG), set up to help resolve septic system 
issues to comply with the Bacteria TMDL recently adopted by the North Coast Regional Board. (I 
am a member of the group.)  As chair of Russian River Watershed Protection Committee, this is 
an issue we have been concerned about for many years.  While our concerns have mostly centered 
on wastewater issues, which included being around for the construction of the Russian River 
County Sanitation District treatment system,  we also had many concerns about Santa Rosa’s 
Subregional Treatment Plant’s discharges into the Laguna de Santa Rosa and Russian River, and 
a keen interest in the Biological Opinion and requirements by National Marine Fisheries Service 
to lower summer flows into the river.  The Sonoma County Water Agency currently is planning to 
re-release the EIR for that project document this year, on orders from the State and Regional 
Water Boards. 
  



mailto:speelane@gmail.com





FY 2020-2021 BUDGET  3 
February 6, 2020 
 


 


RRWPC knows a lot about the water history of the lower river and I believe my participation 
could provide informational resources to Sweetwater that it does not currently have.  
Furthermore, we know many of the current and former key players who have shaped the water 
history of this area. For many years I wrote about water and wastewater concerns in our local 
newspapers and I would be happy to sit down and talk to you and/or other board members if this 
would be helpful.   It is best to contact me by email (noted below). 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Brenda Adelman 
  
PS: I have a BS from University of Wisconsin and an MA from Northwestern University.  I do 
not have formal technical, scientific, or legal training and what knowledge I have in those areas is 
self taught. Nevertheless, others tell me I know a great deal.   I live in Rio Nido and have been in 
the same house for 41 years. 
  
One more thing: I have won about ten awards for my work, two of which I am most proud of.   In 
1999 I was elected by the Press Democrat as one of the most influential citizens of the 
20th Century in Sonoma County and my picture is included with 49 others on the side of the Press 
Democrat building.  Then last year I was awarded the Water Quality Stewardship Award by the 
Executive Officer of the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board.  The Sonoma 
County Gazette wrote an article on this in the March, 2019 issue entitled “Honoring Defender and 
Protector” (Page 1)  The other awards are listed on our website under “About Us”. 
  
  
  
  
Brenda Adelman 
Russian River Watershed Protection Committee 
P.O. Box 501 
Guerneville, CA 95446 
Email:  rrwpc@comcast.net 
RRWPC Website:  www.rrwpc.org 
 
 
 
 



mailto:rrwpc@comcast.net

http://www.rrwpc.org/



		Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 






Resolution No. 20-04 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPLY 


FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDING FOR 


THE FY 2021 CAPITAL PROJECT 
  


 
WHEREAS, the District must approve a resolution approving the application for CDBG 
Funding, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed and discussed the Capital Improvement Plan that 
includes the FY 2021 Capital Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY 2021 Capital Project consists of 5,374 feet of new 6-inch HDPE 
water main at the total cost of $2,740,638.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District will be applying for two rounds of CDBG funding with Phase I 
including Engineering and Design and Phase II being Construction; and  
 
WHEREAS, the FY 2021 Capital Project design and environmental Phase one cost is 
$144,900; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG application requests $115,920.00 with a $28,980 match from the 
District. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District hereby approves the application for Phase I of CDBG 
funding for design and environmental of $115,920.00 for the FY 2021 Capital Project. 
 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
February 6, 2020, by the following vote. 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
         


 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 6, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Grants and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) 
Loans with Principal Forgiveness Financing   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  
Discussion and possible action. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has budgeted 3.75 million dollars of Capital Projects identified in 
the 2020-2025 CIP.  The Board has directed the General Manager to pursue 
all known Grants and Loans that have potential Principal forgiveness to help 
finance these projects.  I have submitted preliminary applications for the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) low-interest loans with 
principal forgiveness due to disadvantaged status for the FY2021 Capital 
project and the Lower Harrison Tank Site project.  In coordination with 
Coastland Engineering, I have also applied for Community Development 
Block Grant funding for planning and design for the FY2021 Capital project.  I 
have also been exploring FEMA/ CalOES Grant funding for our Capital 
projects.  During meeting with Sonoma Water, the need for the District to 
have a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) was stressed.  I met with Ken 
Leep with Harris & Associates, a retired CalOES official on January 15th, and 
discussed the best path forward for the District to qualify for Federal or State 
Disaster Grant funding.  Harris has coordinated with CalOES to open a grant 
application opportunity to help fund the creation of the District’s LHMP.  
Harris would also help coordinate the application for the LHMP, to be 
authored by the GM.  I spoke with Victoria LaMar-Haas with CalOES.  She will 
be very helpful in guidance and support as we apply for FEMA, CDBG and 
other Grant opportunities.      
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 






 
Resolution No. 20-05 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2020-2025 CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 


 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed the overall Capital 
Improvement Program and has established priorities for the upcoming six-year 
period; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has stressed the importance that the 
General Manager should make all efforts to qualify the District for all available Grant 
and or Loans with principal forgiveness to finance the identified Capital Projects. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, hereby 
adopts the Revised FY 2020-2025 Capital Improvement Program attached as Exhibit 
A hereto, effective February 6, 2020. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution supersedes and replaces 
Resolution No. 19-01.   


     
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on February 6, 2020, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
         


 
 


           
      Rich Holmer  
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie Kenny 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Exhibit A 







Resolution 20-05 Revised 2020-2025 CIP 2 
February 6, 2020 
 


 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
 
 


Capital Improvement Program 
2020-2025 


 
Revised February 6, 2020 


 
Board of Directors 
Sukey Robb-Wilder 


Rich Holmer 
Tim Lipinski  


Gaylord Schaap  
 


General Manager 
Ed Fortner 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Resolution 20-05 Revised 2020-2025 CIP 3 
February 6, 2020 
 


 
 


2020-2025 Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital 
Improvement Program 


February 6, 2020 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an high amount of unaccounted for 
water and District staff spend significant time reacting to leaks in the 
distribution system.  Table 1. 2020-2025 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
lists needed District projects by year and includes estimated costs.  The ranking 
criteria for the priority of capital projects are: 
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  
 Disaster Resilience/ Hardening  


 
 
 







Resolution 20-05 Revised 2020-2025 CIP 4 
February 6, 2020 
 


Resolution 20-05 Revised 2020-2025 CIP 4 
February 6, 2020 
 


 







Resolution 20-05 Revised 2020-2025 CIP 5 
February 6, 2020 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 (50%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 2nd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This is the 
mid-year report on our fiscal year.  It comprises 50% of the year by time and so 
we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
In the 2Q the District approved a $500,000 extra payment on the PERS 
Unfunded Liability (UL) financed with a loan from District Policy 
Reserves in that same amount.  This decision was not part of the FY 
2019-20 budget.  It impacted both Operations revenue in the form of 
loan proceeds in the sum of $500,000 and Operations expense in the 
form of the extra UL payment of $500,000 instead of the $64,549 that 
was budgeted.  The net effect of this transaction is $64,549.   
 
Not including the District Policy Reserves loan proceeds transaction, 2Q 
Revenue is greater than 50% of budgeted amount 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at 3.0% ($77,338) ahead of 
the 50% schedule which is typical for the mid year.  At the end of the 2Q we 
have sold 3.5% less water than last year during the same period.   
 
Overall revenues are 3.9% more than budgeted, with higher than budgeted 
revenues in all non-operating revenue categories. 
 
 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru December 31, 2019 2 
February 6, 2020 


Not including the District Policy Reserves loan proceeds transaction, 2Q 
Expenditures are higher than 50% of budgeted amount.  
 
As of the 2Q expenditures are 1.0% ($22,143) more than budgeted.  It 
should be noted that many of our annual expenses have been paid for the 
year.  Of note in the 2Q was the $43,304 price tag for a well rehab of El 
Bonita Well 6.  Budgeted at $18,000, the rehab revealed the need for a 
new pump and motor which drove costs up.   
 
The District is still awaiting the price tag for the Lower Harrison Tank 
emergency parking area rehabilitation.  $12,000 was budgeted for this 
project, but the actual cost will likely be significantly more.  As of the 2Q, 
the District has spent $6,039 on this project. 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 2Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical for mid-year - we have received the 
first installment of the annual assessment from the county and made the first 
payments on our debt.  The expenses of the 2019 CIP (carryover from the 2019 
Budget) have all been paid.   Transfers to CIRF and in-house construction have 
been made as well.  We see no major differences from the approved budget.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 2nd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 2nd 
Quarter.  Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances and 
also the funds at PARS and the USDA Bond Debt at WestAmerica. Table 3 is 
typical for the mid year of the fiscal year - funds will need to be moved around to 
balance out reserve targets.   
 
 







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 823,033 1,644,824 -821,791 50.04%
4031.11· Current Charges 391,083 633,846 -242,763 61.7%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 150,749 296,383 -145,634 50.86%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,364,865 2,575,053 -1,210,188 53.0% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,364,865 2,575,053 -1,210,188 53.0%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 10,216 8,000 2,216 127.7%  


4448 · Policy Reserve Loan Proceeds 500,000 0 500,000 100.0%
In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves *


3600 · Construction New Services 12,282 7,000 5,282 175.45%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 4,406 3,000 1,406 146.88%


4032 · Rent 56,758 105,000 -48,242 54.06%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,995 0 2,995 100.0%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 5,646 1,500 4,146 376.42%
In the 1Q, the District received $4,202 for a meter 
relocation at a customer's request.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 592,303 124,500 467,803 475.75% Percentage without UL 74.14%


Total Income 1,957,168 2,699,553 -742,385 72.5%  Percentage without UL 54%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 436,179 903,046 -466,867 48.3%  


5912 · Overtime 18,462 34,307 -15,845 53.82%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 19,235 34,950 -15,715 55.04%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 18,672 34,100 -15,428 54.76%  


Total Salary 492,548 1,006,403 -513,855 48.94%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -510 0 -510 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 36,707 95,927 -59,220 38.27% This item was likely overbudgeted this year.


5920.4 · Retirement - UL Mandatory 55,451 55,451 0 100.0%
In the 1Q, the mandatory UL payment was paid for 
the year.


5920.5 · Retirement - UL Extra payment 500,000 64,549 435,451 774.61%
In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves *


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 6,745 16,761 -10,016 40.24%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 103,947 237,000 -133,053 43.86%  


5931 · Retiree Health 5,448 7,680 -2,232 70.94%
In the 1Q, annual contribution to CERBT ($3,000) 
made.


5941 · Life insurance - GM 1,000 0 1,000 100.0%  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 33,377 37,000 -3,623 90.21%
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 742,166 514,368 227,798 144.29% Percentage without UL 47.08%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,234,714 1,520,771 -286,057 81.19%
Percentage without UL 48.31%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,363 2,350 -987 58.0%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,017 4,900 -2,883 41.17%


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 1,835 680 1,155 269.92%
In the 1Q, the District had unbudgeted maintenance 
work done on the radios ($1,588)


6040-T · Telephones 12,062 22,900 -10,838 52.67%  


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Communications 17,278 30,830 -13,552 56.04%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76%
(In the 1Q, paid for the year. Underbudgeted this 
year.)


Total Insurances 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 2,642 21,000 -18,358 12.58%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 2,832 6,000 -3,168 47.19%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 5,474 27,000 -21,526 20.27%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 4,255 8,800 -4,545 48.35%
6100 · SCADA system 1,507 5,000 -3,493 30.13%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 22,663 50,000 -27,337 45.33%   
6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 53,621 50,000 3,621 107.24%


In the 2Q the District rehabbed El Bonita Well 6 that 
required replacing the pump and motor ($43,304).  
One well rehab was budgeted for this fiscal year at 
$18,000.


*
6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,145 1,000 1,145 214.53%


The fire emergency resulted in much higher 
generator fuel amounts being used. *


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 84,191 114,800 -30,609 73.34%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 8,372 12,020 -3,648 69.65%  


6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,965 15,000 965 106.43%
In the 2Q the District paid system fees for the year 
($8,122) *


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 24,337 28,520 -4,183 85.33%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 9,311 17,000 -7,689 54.77%  


6430 · Printing Expense 3,680 7,500 -3,820 49.07%  


6461 · Office Supplies 2,213 6,000 -3,787 36.88%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 1,623 1,100 523 147.56%
In the 2Q unbudgeted ads for the Maintenance 
Worker position left this line item underbudgeted. *


6890 · Computers/Software 405 2,500 -2,095 16.2%
Total Office Expense 17,231 34,100 -16,869 50.53%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 10,193 20,000 -9,807 50.97%  


6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,965 7,000 -4,035 42.36%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 794 1,200 -406 66.21%
Total Operating Supplies 13,953 28,200 -14,247 49.48%


Professional Services
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 6,654 12,500 -5,846 53.23%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 12,973 58,000 -45,027 22.37%  


6590 · Engineering 435 0 435 100.0%  


6610 · Legal 16,771 20,000 -3,229 83.86%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 18,598 42,000 -23,402 44.28%
In the 1Q, the District changed credit card 
processing banks at a considerable cost savings., 
which will leave this line item overbudgeted this year.  


Total Professional Services 55,432 132,500 -77,068 41.84%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 606 3,300 -2,694 18.36%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 17,378 29,790 -12,413 58.33% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 17,983 33,090 -15,107 54.35%


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 608 3,650 -3,042 16.65%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 12,263 20,000 -7,737 61.32%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,732 7,400 -2,668 63.95%


Total Transportation & Travel 17,603 31,050 -13,447 56.69%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 685 1,500 -815 45.67%
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,432 1,800 -368 79.58% In the 1Q, t-shirts were purchased for the year.


6021.4 · Jackets 93 240 -147 38.6%  


Total Uniforms 2,210 3,540 -1,330 62.43%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 60,723 110,000 -49,277 55.2%  


7321 · Propane 1,072 3,000 -1,928 35.73%  


Total Utilities 61,795 113,000 -51,205 54.69%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 362,701 620,630 -257,929 58.44%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,597,415 2,141,401 -543,986 74.6%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 7,429 24,000 -16,571 30.95%
In the 2Q, the District spent $6,039 on the Lower 
Harrison parking area project, budgeted at $12,000. *


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%
  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 7,429 24,000 -16,571 30.95%


Total Expense 1,604,843 2,165,401 -560,558 74.11%


Net Ordinary Income 352,324 534,152 -181,828 65.96%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 296,383 296,383 0 100.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 190,000 -190,000 0.0%  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
321,383 526,383 -205,000 61.06%


  


 Page 3 of 3







Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Notes


Income


 


New Construction flat charges revenue 20,544.80 27,000.00 -6,455.20 76.09%


CY Direct Charges 403,541.74 710,000.00 -306,458.26 56.84%


PY Direct Charges 8,436.98 40,000.00 -31,563.02 21.09%


Interest Revenue 14,253.05 25,000.00 -10,746.95 57.01%


Tfer from Operations - CDR 296,383.00 296,383.00 0.00 100.0%


Tfer from Operations - In House Constr. 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.0%


Tfer from Operations - Surplus Income 0.00 190,000.00 -190,000.00 0.0%


Total Income 768,159.57 1,313,383.00 -545,223.43 58.49%


Expense


 


 


In-House Construction 296.38


CIP 2019 (MRTP Filter replacement) 62,471.67 0.00 62,471.67 100.0%


Principal - State Loans 67,116.71 146,619.00 -79,502.29 45.78%


Principal Pymt -USDA  Bonds 27,622.00 98,821.00 -71,199.00 27.95%


Principal - Priv. Placemnt Loan 80,660.10 216,062.00 -135,401.90 37.33%


Principal-2013 Cap One Rev Bond 359,000.00 566,558.00 -207,558.00 63.37%


Capital Interest 194,510.79


Total Expense 791,677.65 1,028,060.00 -236,382.35 77.01%


Net Capital Income -23,518.08 285,323.00 -308,841.08 -8.24%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Capital Budget Variances as of December 31, 2019 (50%)







 


Non-Operating Balances FY 2019-20 and Reserves Above Policy
 


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


GRAND TOTAL: 
COUNTY + USDA 
+ PARS/CERBT


FY 2019-20 Policy Reserves: 


$1,379,359


Reserves Above 
Policy Net Loans from 


Reserves


$42,621.30 $214,170.83 $245,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,235.71 $789,646.59 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $105,662.08 $2,776,702.09 $3,139,156.30 1,759,797.30


NAME


CERBT 
(Contributions are 
part of Reserves)


PARS
(Contributions are part 


of Reserves)


Operations
Bldg Fund
(part of Policy 


Reserves)


FY 2019-20 
POLICY 


RESERVES: 
$1,379,359


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
58340


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


USDA Bond Debt
(at WestAmerica)


Policy Reserve Loans 
Outstanding:


$500,000 (Oct 2019)


CONTRIBUTIONS: CONTRIBUTIONS: ($1,116,991)


Fund
$36,518 $200,000 76751 76752 76753 76755 76756 76759 76762  


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0900
7106


1200  


FP1-Jul $42,621.30 $215,332.01 $295,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,000.81 $724,549.83 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $124,164.15 $2,761,370.43 $3,143,487.89 1,764,128.89


FP2-Aug $42,621.30 $214,435.22 $10,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $629,178.16 $146,945.40 $211,963.07 $124,166.19 $2,176,447.55 $2,557,670.26 1,178,311.26


FP3-Sept $43,151.66 $216,665.90 $70,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $628,600.66 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,883.68 $2,162,561.04 $2,482,262.28 1,102,903.28


FP4-Oct $43,151.66 $219,824.38 $645,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $29,000.81 $651,153.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,884.70 $2,259,662.03 $2,582,522.77 1,203,163.77


FP5-Nov $43,151.66 $223,512.49 $245,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $28,704.43 $653,529.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,885.65 $1,861,741.65 $2,188,291.45 1,308,932.45


FP6-Dec $48,773.00 $227,382.62 $63,684.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $53,704.43 $1,191,572.46 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $166,584.67 $2,243,401.47 $2,686,141.76 1,806,782.76


FP7-Jan


FP8-Feb


FP9-Mar


FP10-Apr


FP11-May


FP12-Jun


FP 13 
(FINAL)


          


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as 


"Vendors Payable")


 


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds); 76754 (Fed Loan); 76757 (Guernewood Park); 76761 (Cap and Debt policy reserve)   (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves; Starting FY 2019-20, CERBT is also part of reserves, but only the contributions (not earnings) to PARS and CERBT are included


 





		Item V-E - Actual v Budgeted - 2Q 2019-20

		Item V-E.1 - Budget variances as of 12-31-2019 (50%)

		Sheet1



		Item V-E.2 - Capital variances as of 12-31-2019

		Sheet1



		Item V-E.3 - County Acctg Funds FY 19-20

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00





